
 
Page 1 of 4 

 

INUTES OF THE VERNAL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING HELD 
JANUARY 7, 2015 at 7:00 p.m. in the Vernal City Council room, 374 East Main, 
Vernal, Utah 84078.  
 

PRESENT: Councilmembers Ted Munford, JoAnn Cowan, Dave Everett, Samantha Scott and 
Bert Clark and Mayor Sonja Norton.  
 
WELCOME: Mayor Norton welcomed everyone to the meeting.   
 
INVOCATION OR UPLIFTING THOUGHT: An invocation was given by Councilmember 
Bert Clark.  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: The pledge of Allegiance was led by Councilmember Samantha 
Scott.   
  
APPROVAL OF CITY COUNCIL MINUTES OF DECEMBER 17, 2014:  
Councilmember Dave Everett moved to approve the minutes of December 17, 2014. 
Councilmember Bert Clark seconded the motion.  The motion passed with Councilmembers 
Munford, Cowan, Everett, Scott and Clark voting in favor.  
 
PRESENTATION OF 2014 AUDIT – DOUG RASMUSSEN:  Doug Rasmussen, CPA with 
Smuin Rich and Marsing, presented the FY2014 budget audit report for the City.  He explained 
that the audit does present fairly all government and business activities for FY2014, which is an 
unqualified opinion.  Mr. Rasmussen brought the Council’s attention to the highlights of the 
report showing that the City’s assets exceed the liabilities by $55 million dollars at the close of 
the fiscal year.  The unrestricted balance of all the governmental and business activities is $4 
million dollars with a net decrease of $780,000.  The City’s governmental activities ended at 
$35 million dollars with a general fund balance of $2,042,581.  This unappropriated fund 
balance amount cannot exceed 25% of the total gross revenue or 100% of the collected property 
tax, and the City is within that amount.  Sales tax increased by $63,000 which is considered a 
very small increase. However, the City also paid over $1 million dollars toward bonds, reducing 
the governmental debt.   
 
Mr. Rasmussen explained that the business activities include the utility funds which have a 
positive change.  Revenues have increased slightly in those departments creating a positive 
position for the City.  Councilmember Clark asked why there is a negative amount in the water 
department for the interest expense.  Doug Rasmussen explained that is the interest 
accumulated on the debt for that system and is listed under non-operating revenue and expenses 
which does reduce the overall revenue for that fund.  Mayor Norton reminded the Council that 
the water rates were adjusted to cover depreciation so when the system needs maintenance or 
replaced the City will have the funds.  Doug Rasmussen agreed, noting that even small repairs 
are expensive so an increase in the fund was needed to take care of repairs and maintenance.   
 
Mr. Rasmussen explained that there were a few things found in the audit that required attention.  
First, in the Municipal Building Authority fund there was one item that exceeded the budget.  

M 



MINUTES OF THE VERNAL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING HELD 
JANUARY 7, 2015 
 

Page 2 of 4 
 

This fund was recorded as an enterprise fund and had to be changed to a governmental fund 
which changed the way the expenses were recorded.  The Finance Director has been made 
aware of that change so now expenses will be recorded as part of that budget.  Councilmember 
Munford noted that the rules changed for the capital expenditures.  Doug Rasmussen explained 
that another area is the way restitution is being handled.  A major retailer has found that they 
get their money quicker if they file a civil complaint against a shoplifter rather than waiting for 
restitution.  That retailer will be providing a letter to the court saying they will collect 
restitution themselves.  Councilmember Cowan asked if they still have to pay a fine.  Ken 
Bassett answered yes; they pay a fine or receive jail time for the criminal offense.  Doug 
Rasmussen stated that the City is required to have a reserve fund to cover the highest month’s 
bond payments and the reserve fund was not high enough.  Additional funds were placed in that 
reserve fund.  Councilmember Clark asked how long the money stays in that fund.  Doug 
Rasmussen stated until the last bond payment is made.  He stated that fund will fluctuate with 
the City’s debt obligations.  The Council and Mayor thanked Mr. Rasmussen for the report and 
praised the finance department for their hard work.  

 
PUBLIC HEARING: CDBG FUNDING 1ST PUBLIC HEARING FOR 2015: Mayor Sonja 
Norton opened the public hearing for the CDBG program, explaining that this hearing is to 
receive input to consider potential projects for the use of CDBG funds this year.  The Uintah 
Basin Association of Governments is expected to receive $400,000 this program year to 
distribute to agencies in their area, which Vernal City is a member.  Eligible projects for this 
funding include acquisition of property for low-income housing, home rehabilitation for 
low-income, public works projects etc.  The City has received approximately eight grants 
through the CDBG program in the past and the City has a low-income housing capital 
investment plan.  Councilmember Cowan asked if the staff was aware of any immediate 
low-income housing needs. Ken Bassett stated that there is always the need to purchase property 
for low income housing similar to Vernal Gardens.  Councilmember JoAnn Cowan stated she 
spoke with Marcie Buca, director of the Housing Authority, who indicated there are several 
low-income housing facilities that will become uninhabitable unless the plumbing can be 
repaired.  Also, there is a fund raising effort to build a small workforce housing complex that 
would be managed by the Housing Authority.  The first step is to purchase a lot to build a 
duplex or tri-plex.  Councilmember Clark asked if the City receives any funding back when 
City funds are used to make repairs to low-income housing.  Ken Bassett stated that the City 
does not collect any money back; however, the added funds help the City compete for the 
available CDBG funding.  Mayor Norton asked for any public comments.  There being no 
comments, the public hearing was closed.  Councilmember Clark asked when this issue will be 
discussed again.  Ken Bassett noted that the application is probably due in February. Mayor 
Norton asked the Council to consider potential projects and bring their suggestions back to the 
next meeting. 
 
COUNCIL APPOINTMENTS TO COUNCIL COMMITTEES: Mayor Sonja Norton 
recommended the committee assignments not change for this year.  She noted that some of the 
Councilmembers are still becoming familiar with their assignments, and because this is an 



MINUTES OF THE VERNAL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING HELD 
JANUARY 7, 2015 
 

Page 3 of 4 
 

election year, there could be changes next year.  Councilmember Clark asked if there has been 
any word from the County Commission on the airport advisory board remaining in place.  Ken 
Bassett answered that Cheri McCurdy with the Uintah Transportation District indicated that the 
District and County will not finalize the interlocal agreement on the management of the airport 
until March so no formal changes will take place until then.  The consensus of the Council was 
to leave the committee appointments the same as last year.   
 
SALE OF PROPERTY: Mayor Sonja Norton explained that the City owns two parcels of 
property by Vernal Gardens which were put up for bid with a minimum bid of $25,000. Ken 
Bassett stated that two bids were received for each parcel of property from the Rosal’s and 
Despains, who indicated that they were really only interested in purchasing one parcel.  The 
bids for the piece located at 300 South 1363 West were $27,650 from the Rosal’s and $20,000 
from the Despain’s.  The bids for the parcel at 250 South 1469 West were $27,692 from the 
Rosal’s and $27,000 from the Despain’s.  Councilmember Cowan suggested both parcels be 
sold with the funds going toward purchasing a more appropriate lot for a duplex for workplace 
housing.  Ken Bassett stated the funds can be placed in the the low income housing fund.  
After further discussion, Councilmember JoAnn Cowan moved to accept the bid of Joe and Pam 
Rosal for $27,692 for property on 250 South 1469 West and the bid from Keith & Pam Despain 
for $25,000 for the lot at 300 South 1363 West.  Councilmember Ted Munford seconded the 
motion.  The motion passed with the following roll call vote:   

Councilmember Munford ...............................................................................aye; 
Councilmember Cowan ..................................................................................aye; 
Councilmember Everett .................................................................................aye; 
Councilmember Scott .....................................................................................aye; 
Councilmember Clark ....................................................................................aye. 

 
ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS  
 
Water Conference:  
Ken Bassett reminded the Council of the upcoming Water Conference to be held at the Western 
Park on January 22, 2015.  Councilmember Clark asked if the staff could put a notice on the 
water billing so residents would be aware of this summit.   
 
Local Officials Day at the Legislature:  
Ken Bassett stated that the Local Official Day at the Legislature with the Youth City Council 
will be Tuesday January 27th and Wednesday January 28th.  Councilmembers Mumford and 
Scott and Mayor Norton indicated they are all planning on attending.   
 
  



MINUTES OF THE VERNAL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING HELD 
JANUARY 7, 2015 
 

Page 4 of 4 
 

ADJOURN: There being no further business, Councilmember Ted Munford moved to adjourn.  
Councilmember Dave Everett seconded the motion.  The motion passed with a unanimous vote 
and the meeting was declared adjourned.   
 
 

________________________________ 
Mayor Sonja Norton 

ATTEST:  
 
________________________________ 
Roxanne Behunin, Deputy Recorder     ( S E A L )  


